
Westminster High School 

East Middle School 

Westminster, a very traditional City, had taken up the Art-Deco 
tendencies of the rest of the nation. Under the encouragement of the 
Federal Government through the BWA Program, this new high school was 
built in 1936 replacing 38 year old structure which, were told in 1936 
newspaper article, "although improved and enlarged on several occasions 
has never been of adequate size or arrangement to care for the needs 
of the growing school population. 11 The same newspaper article, somewhat 
through tear stained eyes notes 11 so much for the old high school, for 
already the students have said their farewells, they will not be so soon 
forgotten though, for many a romance has culminated within its halls and 
classrooms ... " The image fo these culminating romances is mind-boggling. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The old Westminster High School fronts the east side 
of Longwell Avenue, Westminster, on the northernmost section 
of that street. 

The building is, perhaps, Westminsters most conserted 
effort into Art-Deco, a style which, by 1936, when the High 
School was to be built had enjoyed phenomenal success throughout 
the country. The building seems to be governed by the number 
3. There are three wings which create a half H-shape; the prin­
cipal facade or wing has three modernistic brick and limestone 
dividers creating, on the buildings three floors, two sections 
each having three sub-section being three bays wide. Originally 
the windows seem to have been double-hung sash windows which 
have since been replaced by modern permanent smoked glass. 
Furthermore each of the brick and limestone dividers has, at the 
top, a set of three steps. Moderne carved limestone decorations 
enliven the centers of the end dividers, and provide finials for 
the three story brick pilasters which surround both carved designs. 

A November 27, 1936 newspaper article provides con­
temporary details about the buildings original appearance. We 
are told that; 

The building is 188' x 152' and of a modern architectural 
design built of brick, steel and concrete with Indiana 
limestone trim. As for its safety, it is absolutely 
fireproof throughout. Interior walls and corridors 
are tiled to insure this safety. The floors of the 
first and second classrooms are blocked linoleum, while 
the floors of the basement are composition. 

Also, a feature of the building is the 1700 built-in all 
metal fireproof lockers. These are to be found on all 
corridors and to all classrooms .... 

The basement will contain the cafeteria, the kitchens, 
pantrys, domestic science, sewing, metal and wood shops, 
forge room, music and typing rooms, and teachers 
conference room. 

The first floor or main main floor contains 12 classrooms, 
modern lavatories, restrooms, guest room and the 
principal offices. The principal's suite, contains a 
waiting room a secretary's office, a private office and 
stock rooms, all with communicating doors and entrance 
to main corridors .... 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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The architectural interest of the old High School 
has already been discussed: Westminster, a very traditional 
City, had taken up the Art-Deco tendencies of the rest of 
the nation. Under the encouragement of the Federal Government 
through the PWA Program, this new high school was built in 
1936 replacing 38 year old structure which, were told in 
1936 newspaper article, "although improved and enlarged on 
several occasions has never been of adequate size or arrangement 
to care for the needs of the growing school population." The 
same newspaper article, somewhat through tear stained eyes notes 
"so much for the old high school, for already the students have 
said their farewells, they will not be so soon forgotten though, 
for many a romance has culminated within its halls and class­
rooms ... " The image of these culminating romances is mind­
boggling. 

A newer high school was built south of town in 1971, 
and the old building was used as a "Middle" school. 
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Also on the second floor is to be found three modern 
laboratories, five classrooms, a large attractive 
library, lavatories, and restrooms .... 

Of special interest and pride is the beautiful 
auditorium, 65' x 107' which is entered from the 
buildings' corridor or entrance to the building. 
It has a seating capacity of approximately 1000 
with stationary opera chairs .... 

Battleship linoleum is laid on the floor to permit 
quietness and comfort while the walls are furnished 
in pastels and ivory. ~indow drapes are of ecru. A 
special feature is a modern indirect lighting generally 
used in theaters and large auditoriums. The stage is 
a fair size and drops of ecru and mulberry are completely 
equipped with theatrical lighting effects. 

We are also told, towards the end of the article, that the 
total cost of the building is approximately "209,000 exclusive the 
furnishings .... All available furnishings have been moved from the 
old building to the new and the approximate cost of new furnishings 
is between 6,000 and 7,000 dollars." Not surprisingly, considering 
the boldness of the design, we are also told that "the work has been 
done under a PWA grant, which is 45% portion of the total cost." 



The New Westminster High School To Be Occupied Monday 

Westminster's new high school is 
ready for occupancy, and the trek of 
students will begin on Monday mor.n­
ing. Inspections are over, vup1l>J 
have already learned their room loca­
tions and conducted tours are at an 
end. ' In fact the business of l.~rn­
inll under more favorable conditions 
will beirin on Monday when E. C. 
Seit:r., Principal, presses the call bell 
for the opening of classes. 

After years of astitation, We11tmin-
1<tcr has a school of adequate propor­
tions, one that is modern in every de­
tl\il. to take care of the present stu­
rlent body and the expected increase 
for many years to come. It is a hand­
some structure, one in which the citi­
zens and school patrons are justly 
proud. 

The school buildln11: on Center St. 
which waa built in 1898, although im­
proved and enlarged on several occa­
sions, hu never been of adequate size 
or arrangement to care for the needs 
of the growing school population. For 
the past twenty-years it has . ~ 
crowded. certain necessary fac1ht1es 
were lacking, until in late years It was 
necessary to erect several portables 
and to convert the aaaembly ball into 
class and lltudv rooms. Thia necessi­
tated an outside assembly place, ~nd 
it was required to parade the child­
ren to the Opera House for this pur­
pose. A playground and athletic 
field which is ao essential to a school 
was also lacking, and athletics were 
thereby handicapped. 

So much for the old hh:h school. 
for already the students have said 
their farewells. It will not be so soon 
forgotten though, for many a romance 
has culminated within its halls and 
classrooms, and many school day 
pleasantries will be remembered 
through the years to come. The old 
building had a service to render, and 
it rendered it well under capable lead­
ership. 

The present location,· which i11 on a 
ten-acre tract, purchased from the B. 
F. Shriver Co., and the Crowl estate, 
faces on Longwell Ave., extended. The 
building i11 188x152 feet and of a mod­
em architectural . design, built of 
brick, steel and concrete with Indiana 
limestone trim. As for its safety, It 
is absolutely fireproof throughout. Jn. 
terior walls and corridors are tiled to 
inaure this safety. Floors of the first 
and second ftoor class rooms are of 
blocked linoleum, while the ftoors of 
the basement are composition. 

A feature of the building Is the 700 
built in all metal fireproof lockers. 
These are to be found in all corridors 
and convenient to each class room. 
Each student will have its .J1Wll locker 
for the period of the school year, elim­
inating the old atyle cloak-room. Stu­
dents will be given a key on Monday 
which will be returned at the end of 
the year. 

The basement will contain the cafe-

teria, kitcherui, pantries, domestic 
science, sewing, metal and wood snops, 
forge room, music and typing rooms, 
and teacher!! conference room. 

The fir11t floor or main floor contains 
twelve cla!ls rooms, modern lavatories, 
rest rooms, guest room and the Prin­
cipal's offices. The principal's 11uite 
contains a waiting room, secretary's 
office, private office and stock rooms, 
all with communicating doors and en­
trance to main corridors. 

Mr. Seitz will have a complete sys­
tem of communication to all class 
rooms and departments. 

On the second floor is to be found 
three morlern laboratorie!I, five class 
rooms, a large and attractive library, 
lavatories and rest rooms. 

Each ftoo1· has a complete fire alarm 
system, incinerator shutes, clocks and 
all the necessities for safety. Every 
room is ventilated. In the basement 
under the auditorium is ample space 
for additional room!! if needed. The 
heating system is 11team with stoker 
control and the lighting system con­
eists of a lighting and power circuit. 
Sewerage has been installed and is in 
complete connection with the city sys­
tem. 

Of 11pecial interest and pride is the 
beautiful auditorium, 66xl07 feet 
which is entered from the main corri­
dor or entrance to the building. It 
has a seating capacity of approxim­
ately one thousand with stationary 
opera chairs. The floor is sloped 
toward the stage to give clear vision 
from every part nf the room. A lar~l' 
balcony accommodates about 150. 
Battleship linoleum is laid on the floor 
to permit quietness and comfort, while 
the walls aTe finished in pastels and 
ivory. Window drapes are of ecru. 
A special feature is the modern indir­
ect lighting generally used in theatres 
and large auditoriums. The stage is 
of fair size with drops of ecru and 
mulberry and completely equipped 
with theatrical lighting effects. 

Grading of the land wa!I under the 
PW A and the building was planned 
by B. E. Starr of Harrisburg, Pa., 
registered architect. The contract 
for the general building was awarded 
to Allen Feeser, Taneytown; heating 
and plumbing to George Harner, Tan­
eytown: electrical work, to Blumen­
thal-Kahn Electrical Company, of 
Baltimore. Top i.oil and fine grading 
of the ground was included in the 
general contract, but the scheme of 
planting the ground11 was designed 
and executed by the Westminster 
Nursery. The total cost of the build­
ing ii; appl'oxiroately $20!1.000.00, ex­
clusive of furni11hings. All available 
furnishings have been moved from the 
old building to the new and the ap­
proximate cost of new furnil1hings is 
between $6,000 and $7,000. The work 
has been done under a PW A grant, 
which is 45 per cent proportion of the 
total coat. 

Construction work was begun In 
January of this year with the follow­
in2 engineers assigned to the job: 
PWA resident engineers, Stewart Mil­
let', Hagerstown; William I. Eney, 
Baltimore, and Lawrence B. Ritter: 
engineers of Carroll County Board of 
F.:ducation, John H. Elgen and Walter 
Barnes. 

In November 1935, the school 
board granted ten feet of land along 
tho alley running parallel with Willis 
street to the city. Thia will be paved 
as soon as convenient. Longwell ave­
nue has been extended and paved and 
the county hat! completed its portion 
of roadwav, which gives a full width 
street in front of the building. 

As proposed, the athletic field, when 
completed will be of ample size for all 
sport11, including track. football, base­
ball and tenni11. It is the plan of the 
school board to add at a later date. a 
wing to the present structure to house 
the gymnasium. 

All sn-ades from the Seventh up will 
occupy the new .structure, which In­
cludes about 625 students. 

The faculty in the new building will 
be as follows: E. C. Seitz, principal 
and economic11: Samuel Jenneaa, aa· 
si11tant principal, business and alge­
brn; Mi!ls Katherine Fiscel, al!aistant 
principal, English; Lyman Earhart, 
mathematics and athletics; Frank 
Clark, f(Emeral science and chemistry; 
Miss Helen Eckard, En1.?lish and li­
brary; Mi~a Frances Miller, history: 
M1·i;. Carev K. Sentz, Latin and 
French; William G. Eaton, English; 
Curvin Seitz, mathematics and phy­
sics; Miss Elizabeth Bemiller, biology 
and Gen<iml 11cience; Rose Conaway, 
hii<torv and librarv; Mrs. Willard 
Hawkins. music; Miss Ethel Ensor, 
scwinj!', home economics; Miss Marie 
Hull, home e,conomics; Samuel Calt-
1·ider, i.ho)I; Olaude M. Le1''evre, shop; 
Huston Curd, commercial; Emma 
Brawn, busine!IS; Mrs. Maitland 
Rarn<?s, commercial: Mi11a Cornelia 
Kroh, librarian and business train­
ing. Seventh Grade, Miss Alma Mc­
Caffrey, science, geography, music ap­
nreciation, penmanship and spelling; 
Mis11 Rachel Buckingham, history, 
arithmetic, civics and health; Miss 
Eva Rinker, English, art and read­
ing. There will be some revision In 
the seventh grade 11chedu1e. 

Monday will also mean moving dav 
for the children of Graceland school 
on Green ~treet. This group will oc­
cupy the first floor of the Elementary 
building on Center street, while the 
5th and 6th grades will occup_y tho 
second ftoor. This means that Grace­
land and all portables will be vacant, 
with all classes housed under one roof. 

The moving of all equipment was 
completed during the week with 
schools closed from Monday after­
noon. 
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HISTORY OF PUBLIC SCHOOLS IN WESTMINSTER 

Lisa Kronman 

The story of public schools in Westminster is one 

of growth and modernization. In 1965, a study compared 

Carroll County's current school funds with those of 1865. 

It was found that the cost per pupil in 1865 was $5.24, 

and the cost per pupil in 1965 was $367.81. This cost 

reflects continuing improvements in the educational pro­

grams, policies, and buildings in Westminster. 

Public schooling was begun early here. In fact, 

the first act providing for a free school was passed in 

1694. The funds to support this school were raised by 

taxing imported Irish Catholic servants, black slaves, and 

tobacco. For thirty years fur traders also contributed 

to the school fund. Because fur trading was a large and 

profitable business, traders were forced to pay duties 

on their merchandise. However, the idea of the public 

school that we know today did not evolve until 1864. 

There were many private schools in and about 

Westminster. There was the Collegiate and Academic Institute, 

founded in 1860, The Thorndale Seminary for Young Ladies, 

and Euell's Seminary for Women, founded in 1859. In 1835, 

there was an article in a local newspaper advertising a night 

school for adult education. 

In 1864, Libertus Van Bokkelen, State Superintendent 

of Public Instruction, submitted to the General Assemble the 

following criteria for public schools: 

1) Education ought to be universal. 
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2) Education ought to be free. 

3) The property of the whole state is responsible 
for the education of every child. 

Taking these criteria into consideration, Carroll County 

fully launched its Public School program. The school year 

was divided into two terms, forty-nine and forty-six days 

each. The school day started at 8:30 am, with an hour for 

lunch and a fifteen minute recess, and ended at 4:00 pm. 

The students were not given textbooks, but had to rent them 

from the school. 

The school buildings were not at all like the 

modern highschools of Westminster today. In 1885, there 

were rural one-room schoolhouses in each school district 

in Carroll County. A visitor to the area described one 

of these buildings: 

"One room with three wndows on each side. There 
was no vestibule and the door opened directly into 
the room. On each side of the door was a row of 
nails for the wraps, and in the corner a bench 
made from a slab supported by wooden pegs. This 
bench was a receptable (sic) for a tin water 
bucket, a dipper, and a wash basin. The building 
was heated by a tin plate stove ... A row of desks 
were placed on either side of the room ... the boys 
occupying the row on the left and the girls those 
on the right ... On the wall was a small blackboard ... 
a bookcase completed the furnishings ... " 

There were also a few schools for black students in the 

county. There were usually conducted in private homes and 

there is little information on them. 

Soon this system of one-room schoolhouses was no 

longer sufficient for the growing numbers of school-age 

children, and in 1898, Westminster built the first public 

high school in Carroll County. This school, (now the 

unoccupied East End Elementary School on Center Street) 
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had three or four classrooms, cloak rooms instead of nails 

next to the door, and an outside playground. It did not, 

however, have sanitation facilities; outside toilets were 

not installed until 1932. 

The town must have been very happy with its new 

highschool because the attendance rate was 93.8% of school 

age children. Of course, attendance was strictly enforced 

in those days. Every district had a truant officer, who did 

his best to make sure that the taxpayers weren't wasting 

their money. As an added incentive, schools were given 

awards of new books and funds for having the highest monthly 

attendance rates. 

Students in the 1800's were taught many of the same 

subjects that students are taught today. They learned manual, 

domestic, and industrial arts, music, history, and geography. 

Greek and Latin were both standard subjects well into the 

twentieth century. 

In 1922, a series of Standard Tests were given to 

all grades in Carroll County, and it was found that most of 

the students were too old for the class to which they were 

assigned. Measures were taken to improve the quality of 

public education. A few new programs were instituted, but 

the biggest change was the beginnings of physical education. 

More stress was put on the physical health and ability of 

children in hopes that it would lead to improvement in their 

academic work. Recess periods were lengthened, intramural 

games begun, and a Playground Athletic League was formed. 

Soon the High School on Center Street was no longer 

big enough and funds were appropriated for the building of a 
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new school on Longwell Avenue, (Now the Westminster Middle 

School). This school, which opened in 1937, had all the 

newest innovations-indirect lighting, metal lockers instead 

of cloak rooms, an incinerator, and a fire alarm system. 

The school has since undergone a few additions and alterations, 

including a new gymnasium, constructed in 1940, and new 

shop facilities. Even this school was outgrown and the 

newest Westminster High was built out on Route 32. 

An understanding of Westminster's past will contribute 

to better appreciation of today's educational system. The 

progression from the small brick building on Center Street 

to the sprawling high school complex on Route 32 parallels 

Westminster's growth as a community. 
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